
  
 
 
 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting 
Tuesday, February 20, 2024 - 5:30 p.m. 

Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to order. 

a. Invocation 
b. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Public comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Commission on any matter, not on the 
agenda, may do so during this item.  Please state your name and address for 
the record and limit your comments to three minutes.  Please understand 
while the commission appreciates hearing your comments, State law (Texas 
Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from (1) engaging in discussion other 
than providing a statement of specific factual information or reciting existing 
City policy, and (2) taking action other than directing Staff to place the matter 
on a future agenda.  

 
3. Consider the minutes of the January 16, 2024, regular meeting. 

 
4. Z-24-04 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to 

Planned Development – Commercial Highway on 7.51 acres located at 3401 S. IH 
35 Service Road, located on the southwest intersection of Interstate 35 and 
Mesquite Road.   

 
5. P-22-45 - Consider a final plat of Unity Four Plat, comprising 7.51 acres, located at 

the southwest intersection of Interstate 35 Frontage Road and Mesquite Drive.   
 

6. Administrative Plat Approvals: None to report for the month of January. 
 
 
If interpreter services for the deaf or hearing impaired are required, please contact the 
City Clerk at (254) 933-5817 at least 48 hours in advance. 

CITY OF BELTON 



 
 

1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
Tuesday, January 16, 2024 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North 
Alexander Street. Present Commission members:  Chair Brett Baggerly, David Jarratt, Alton McCallum, 
Ty Taggart, and Luke Potts.  The following members were absent: Quinton Locklin, Nicole Fischer, 
Dominica Garza, and Justin Ruiz.  The following staff members were present:  Director of Planning Bob 
van Til, Planner Tina Moore, Planning Administrator Melinda Brice, Planning Technician Madison 
Neill, and IT System Analyst Alex Munger. 
 
1. Call To Order. 

 
Chair Baggerly called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
Invocation – Commission Member Jarratt gave the Invocation.  
Pledge of Allegiance – Chair Baggerly led the Pledge. 
 

2. Public comments. (Audio 00:59)  
 

Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. 
 
With no public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 

3. Consider approval of minutes from the previous meeting. (Audio 1:23) 
 
Commission Member Jarratt motioned to approve minutes from the December 19, 2023, meeting, 
seconded by Commission Member McCallum.  The motion passed with 5 ayes and 0 nays.   
 

4. Z-24-01 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to Retail, on 
approximately 0.7286 acres located at 2510 Commerce St. at the northeast intersection of 
Sparta Road and Commerce Road. (Audio 1:50) 

 
City Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing.  
 
With no public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Member Potts made a motion to approve Z-24-01 as presented. Commission Member 
Taggart seconded the motion. The motion passed with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

5. P-23-30 - Consider a final plat for Sparta Circle Addition Lot 1 Block 1, comprising 0.7286 
acres, located at 2510 Commerce Street, at the northeast corner of Commerce Street and 
Sparta Road. (Audio 4:02) 



 
 

2 
 

City Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
City Planner Ms. Moore answered questions from the Commission Members. 
 
Commission Member Taggart made a motion to approve P-23-30 as presented. Commission Member 
Jarratt seconded the motion. The motion passed with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

6. Z-24-02 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to Single 
Family 2 with Conservation Revitalization Overlay, on approximately 4.4 acres located at 
2114 Sparta Rd., located on the north side of Sparta Rd, east of Wheat Road and west of 
Dunns Canyon Road. This application was withdrawn by the applicant. (Audio 7:12) 
 

7. Z-24-03 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Single Family-2 w/ 
Conservation Revitalization Overlay Residential District to Single Family -2 w/ Conservation 
Revitalization Overly w/ a Specific Use Permit for an Accessory Dwelling Unit with a kitchen 
on approximately 0.344 acres located at 621 South Pearl Street located at the northwest corner 
of South Pearl Street and West Avenue F. (Audio 7:20) 

  
 City Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
 Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. 
  
 With no public input, the public hearing was closed.  
 
 Commission Member Taggart made a motion to approve Z-24-03 as presented.  Commission 

Member McCallum seconded the motion.  The motion passed with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
  
8. Receive a brief update on the Future Land Use Map Project. (Audio 11:17) 
  
 Director of Planning Bob van Til presented the update on the Future Land Use Map. 
 
 Director of Planning van Til answered questions from the Commission Members. 
 
9. Receive a report on Administrative Plat Approvals. 
 
 City Planner Ms. Moore presented the list of administratively approved plats. 
 

With no other city business, the Planning and Zoning Commission was adjourned at 5:56 p.m. (Audio 
ends at 25:40) 

        __________________________________ 
         Chair, Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

Attest: 
______________________________________ 
Melinda Brice, Planning Administrator 



 
 

 

P&Z Agenda Item 
February 20, 2024 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – Planning & Zoning Agenda Item                   
 
 
      Date:   February 20, 2024   
      Zoning No.:  Z-24-04 

Request:  A to PD CH 
Applicant/Owners: Richard Mathias / Unity Four 

2150 Investment LLC 
 

Agenda Item #4 
 
Z-24-04 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (A) to 
Planned Development (PD) – Commercial Highway (CH), on approximately 7.51 acres 
located at 3405 S. IH 35 Service Rd. 
 

• Address:  3405 S. IH 35 Service Rd 

• Acres: 7.51 acres 

• Current Zoning: Agricultural           Current Use: Vacant Lot 

• Proposed Zoning: Planned Development – Commercial Highway   

• Proposed Use: Travel Center - convenience store, gas station, and restaurant. 

•  Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation:  Commercial / Commercial Corridor 

• Design Standards Type Area: Type Area 2 

• Background: The Planning and Zoning Commission voted to recommend approval for 
a previous zoning change from Agricultural to Commercial Highway during the January 
17, 2023 meeting. The item was disapproved by the City Council at their meeting on 
February 14, 2023, based on traffic circulation and wastewater connection concerns.  

• Project Analysis:  

Direction Zoning  Use 
North Commercial Highway Vacant Lot 
South Agricultural Vacant Lot 
West Agricultural Vacant Lot 
East Commercial Highway  

(Across IH 35) 
Cedar Crest Hospital and 
Residential Treatment 
Center 



 
 

 

P&Z Agenda Item 
February 20, 2024 

Page 2 of 3   
 

o Water: Belton CCN. Available at the site. Sewer: Belton CCN. Not 
available on site.  

o The applicant intends to construct a travel center with a convenience store, gas 
station, and two restaurants.  

o This zoning application amends the original zoning application to a Planned 
Development – Commercial Highway. The application also includes a 
Development Agreement based on the Council’s concerns.  

o Per the terms of the Development Agreement the developer agrees to the 
following: 

 Construct the full-width road improvements for Mesquite Road from IH 
35 to the western property line. Mesquite Road is classified as a minor 
collector that requires 60’ of right of way and 36’ of paving, curb and 
gutter, with a 5’ sidewalk.  

 Upgrade the current public stormwater drainage system on Mesquite 
Road, which is currently on the City’s Capital Improvement Plan. 

 Dedicate a wastewater easement. The applicant commits to connect to 
the City Wastewater System when available. An on-site sewage facility 
(OSSF) is currently proposed for service. At their expense, the owners 
will decommission the OSSF and install a sewer line to and through to 
the northern boundary of their property when the municipal system is 
extended to their property. 

 Install an 8’ landscaping buffer and a 6’ wood privacy fence along the 
western boundary of the lot, adjacent to a residential neighbor.  

 Provide an on-site school bus stop facility to be utilized by Belton 
Independent School District (BISD).  

 Construct the buildings in accordance with Exhibit E of the Development 
Agreement which consists of stucco, stone, and metal materials.  

• Recommendation: The requested zoning appears to be reasonable at this location. 

Recommend approval of the requested zoning change from Agricultural to Planned 
Development: 

1. The use of this property shall conform to the Commercial Highway District in 
all respects. 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 
Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, including: 

a. Site Development Standards (Exhibit F)  



 
 

 

P&Z Agenda Item 
February 20, 2024 

Page 3 of 3   
 

b. Landscape Design Standards 
c. Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation Standards.  

3. The owners agree that the development agreement terms are conditions of 
this zoning change and shall be completed prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy for any building or business.  

4. A subdivision plat and building permit are required before development.  
 

• Attachments: 
1. Application and draft development agreement 
2. Property Location Map 
3. Zoning map 
4. Aerial photo 
5. Zoning notice to owners/Owner notification list/Map with zoning notice boundary 

(200’) 
 

 
• For more information, please contact: 

Tina Moore, AICP 
Email: tmoore@beltontexas.gov 
Phone : (245) 933-5891 

mailto:tmoore@beltontexas.gov


- 1 -

ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION 
Fee: $300.00
Date received: 

APPLICANT NAME: 

EMAIL: PHONE NUMBER: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME: 

EMAIL: PHONE NUMBER: 

MAILING ADDRESS:  

Proposed Use of Structures (building) and Property (exterior property):  

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________

Current Use:  

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

LOCATION/STREET ADDRESS OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED:  
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Legal Description of Property:  Abstract Survey_________________________________________________________ 

Lot(s): _____________________ Block(s): ______________________,  
of Subdivision _______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Existing Zoning:  ____________________________ Proposed Zoning:________________________________ 

Signature of Applicant:_________________________________________   Date: _________________________ 

Signature of Owner (if not applicant): ____________________________    Date: _________________________ 

City of Belton Planning Department  
333 Water Street  Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812  Fax (254) 933-5822 



1 | P a g e  
 

Belton Travel Center Development Agreement 
 
 
 
 
PART 1 
Findings and Agreement 
 
The City of Belton (City) finds that entering into this Development Agreement with 
Unity Four 2150 Investment, LLC (Developer) is in the public’s interest to improve 
Mesquite Lane and provide for future wastewater line placement. 
 
Developer applied for a zoning change, Final Plat, and Site Plan on a 7.51-acre 
commercial development at 3405 S IH 35 SCV Rd, known as Belton Travel Center 
(Attachment “A”). 
 
PART 2 
Planned Road Improvements 
 
According to the City’s Thoroughfare Plan Map, Mesquite is a Minor Collector ‘B’ with 
60’ ROW and 36 feet pavement (see Attachment “B”). 
 
The Developer agrees to construct the full pavement section of Mesquite Road that 
abuts the subdivision, as described herein and shown on Attachment “C,” a total 
distance of 511 feet. The developer will install a 5-foot sidewalk on the subdivision 
side of the roadway. These improvements will be placed within the existing road ROW 
and the Developer will dedicate up to 13.03 feet of ROW from the subject property.  
 
PART 3 
Planned Drainage Improvements 
 
As part of the “Planned Road Improvements” identified in Part 2 of this Agreement, 
the developer will construct drainage improvements to expand the existing 
stormwater drainage pipe to accommodate the existing drainage feature that crosses 
this section of Mesquite Road. The purpose of these improvements is to eliminate the 
flooding that current exists at the intersection of IH-35 and Mesquite Road. 
 
 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

Design and Engineering 
 
The Developer will pay for the design cost of the Mesquite Road and the stormwater 
improvements described herein and the city of Belton will allow the Developer to use 
any existing design plans that have already been completed, and make any necessary 
design changes that might be required. 
 
PART 4 
Wastewater Service 
 
The Developer agrees to dedicate an easement and contribute to the cost for the 
installation of a public wastewater line at such time as others wish to extend the city’s 
existing wastewater system. This cost will be limited to the section of the wastewater 
line that crosses the Developer’s property. Once the wastewater line is complete and 
operational, the Developer agrees to abandon the proposed septic system and 
connect to this wastewater line. (see Attachment “D”). 
 
PART 5 
Fencing and Landscape Buffer 
 
The Developer will construct and install an 8-foot landscaped buffer and a 6-foot wood 
privacy fence along the property’s western boundary as shown on Attachment “E”. 
The landscaping shall consist of Red Tip Photinia planted on 8-foot center and located 
on the inside of the fence. 
 
PART 6 
Building Design Elevations 
 
The Developer will construct the building in substantial compliance with the 
architectural elevations shown on Attachment “F”. 
  
PART 7 
School Safety Improvements 
 
The Developer will install a sidewalk along the subdivision side of Mesquite Road and 
the IH-35 frontage road, along with an on-site school bus stop facility that will be 
placed within the boundaries of the proposed development. The location and specific 
improvements will be determined with the Site Plan application. 



3 | P a g e  
 

Approvals 
 
The City and Developer both agree to these terms and conditions. 
Nothing in this agreement removes, amends, changes, or alters any of the existing 
development ordinances, policies, or regulations unless specifically addressed by this 
Agreement. 
 
Any amendments to this agreement must be made in writing, approved by both 
parties in writing, whereby the amendment is initiated a minimum of 30 working days 
in advance. 
 
Signatures 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Unity Four 2150 Investment, LLC  
By: Nasruddin Mahesania, its manager 
 
Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sam A. Listi, City Manager  
 
 
Date: ________________________ 
 
 
 

Attachments 
Attachment “A” — Unity Four Final Plat. 
Attachment “B” — Page from the Belton Engineering Design Manual showing the 
Minor Collector Cross Section A. 
Attachment “C” – Roadway Improvements to Mesquite Road. 
Attachment “D” – Future Wastewater Line Location. 
Attachment “E” - Fencing and Landscape Buffer Location. 
Attachment “F” - Building Elevations. 
 
 

2/14/2024















§̈¦35

§̈¦35

£¤121

£¤121

SHANKLIN RD

ME
SQ

UIT
E R

D

MESQUITE LN

FR
AN

CE
S L

N
ME

SQ
UIT

E R
D

DECKER RD

SH
AN

KL
IN 

LN

ELM GROVE SPUR

S INT
ER

ST
AT

E 3
5

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

S IH
35

SE
RV

ICE
RD

CROSS R D

W LOOP 121

W LOOP 121
E LOOP 121

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

CA
PI

TO
L W

AY

LE
RO

Y L
N

KAY LN

PA
T D

R

BELLA GARDEN WAY

ON
 R

AM
P

S
WA

LL
ST

S
IH

35
SE

RV
IC

E R
D

MI
LL

ER
 ST

S I
H 

35
 SE

RV
ICE

 RD

TOLLBRIDGERD

CROSS
RD DECKER RD

BELLA ROSE DR

EX
IT 

29
3 A

CO
NN

EL
L S

T

ON

ON
 R

AM
P

MESQUITE RD

EX
IT

292

EX
IT 

29
0

GROVES RD

ELM GROVE SPUR

M I T C H E L L
B

R A N C H

W LOOP 121

MI
LL

ER
 ST

CO
NN

EL
L S

T

E AVE M

CA
P I

T O
L

W
AY

L AIL A L N

S
IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

35

SHARO N RD

PO
ST

 O
AK

 DR
AS

H D
R

RUBY CV

ALLIE WAY

HE
RR

IN
GT

ON
 ST

HA
MI

LT
ON

 LNLOGGIA DR

ON

EX
IT 

28
9A

ON
 RA

MP

EX
IT 

29
3 A

S H
AN

K L
IN

RD

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

£¤190 Type Area 7

Type
Area 11

Type
Area 4

Type
Area 9

Type
Area 4

Type
Area 12
Type Area 4

FM 436

EL
M 

GR
OV

E

AUCTION BARN

SH
AN

KL
IN

OL
D G

OL
F

CO
UR

SE

LUKERBUTLER

ROPERSALLEY

ME
SQ

UI
TE

HE
LL

UM
S

ME
SQ

UI
TE

19
0

WILKINSONSHADY
GROVE

SH
AN

KL
IN

DECKERELM GROVE

LEGEND
Z_24_04

Zoning Case #   Zoning Case #    Z-24-04_Location Z-24-04_Location

0 1000500
Feet µMap Date: 1/26/2024

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning Cases\2024\!Zoning Change Cases!\Z-24-04\Z-24-04_Location.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.

ZONING CHANGE:
AG

A0006BC M F CONNELL,
(PT OF 7.51AC TR), ACRES 3.964
A0006BC M F CONNELL,
(PT OF 7.51AC TR), ACRES 3.546

to
PD-CH
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
UNITY FOUR 2150 INVESTMENTS, LLC

3401 S IH 35 SVC RD
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



§̈¦35

§̈¦35

FR
AN

CE
S L

N

ME
SQ

UIT
E R

D
MESQUITE LN

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

PA
T D

R

ELM GROVE SPUR

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

CA
PIT

OL
 W

AY

S INT
ER

ST
AT

E 3
5

EX
IT 

292

S IH
35

SE
RV

ICE
RD

ON

ON
 R

AM
P

MESQUITE RD

EX
IT 

29
0

GROVES RD

PD-C1PD-C1
WeddingWedding
ChapelChapel

PD-ExpoPD-Expo

PD-CHPD-CH

PD-C1 forPD-C1 for
RV ParkRV Park

A

C-2

A
CH

CH
A

A

CH

LI

C-2

C-2

A

A

A

LI

Legend
Z_24_04
City Parcels
CityLimits

Current_Zoning
Agricultural
Commercial Highway
Commercial-2
Light Industrial
Planned Development

Zoning Case #   Zoning Case #    Z-24-04_Zoning Z-24-04_Zoning

0 1000500
Feet µMap Date: 1/26/2024

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning Cases\2024\!Zoning Change Cases!\Z-24-04\Z-24-04_Zoning.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.

ZONING CHANGE:
AG

A0006BC M F CONNELL,
(PT OF 7.51AC TR), ACRES 3.964
A0006BC M F CONNELL,
(PT OF 7.51AC TR), ACRES 3.546

to
PD-CH
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
UNITY FOUR 2150 INVESTMENTS, LLC

3401 S IH 35 SVC RD
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



§̈¦35

§̈¦35

MESQUITE RD

ON

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

ON
 R

AM
P

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

MESQUITE RD

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5
S I

NT
ER

ST
AT

E 3
5

LEGEND
Z_24_04

Zoning Case #   Zoning Case #    Z-24-04_Aerial Z-24-04_Aerial

0 300150
Feet µMap Date: 1/26/2024

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning Cases\2024\!Zoning Change Cases!\Z-24-04\Z-24-04_Aerial.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.

ZONING CHANGE:
AG

A0006BC M F CONNELL,
(PT OF 7.51AC TR), ACRES 3.964
A0006BC M F CONNELL,
(PT OF 7.51AC TR), ACRES 3.546

to
PD-CH
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
UNITY FOUR 2150 INVESTMENTS, LLC

3401 S IH 35 SVC RD
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



*A notarized signature may be required for a written protest letter, if more than 20% of the adjacent neighbors 
protest the requested zoning change. 

 

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE 

OF THE CITY OF BELTON 
 
THE CITY OF BELTON HAS RECEIVED A REQUEST FROM: UNITY FOUR 2150 INVESTMENT, LLC.  , 
TO CHANGE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:   3401 S. IH 35 SVC ROAD , 
FROM A(N) AGRICULTURAL (AG)    __ZONING DISTRICT, 
TO A(N)         PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) – COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY (CH) ZONING DISTRICT, 
TO CONSTRUCT: A CONVENIENCE STORE, RESTAURANT, AND GAS STATION .  
  

THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING 
PURSUANT TO THIS REQUEST AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, February 20, 2024, AT THE T.B. HARRIS CENTER, 401 N. 
ALEXANDER, BELTON, TEXAS. 

 
IF APPROVED BY THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION, THIS ITEM WILL BE PLACED ON THE AGENDA FOR A 

PUBLIC HEARING BY THE CITY COUNCIL.  THAT MEETING WILL BE AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, February 27, 2024, AT THE 
T. B. HARRIS COMMUNITY CENTER, 401 ALEXANDER STREET, BELTON, TEXAS. 

 
YOU ARE RECEIVING THIS NOTICE BECAUSE YOU RESIDE WITHIN 200’ OF THE PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE.  PER 

STATE LAW, THE CITY IS REQUIRED TO NOTIFY YOU OF THE REQUESTED ZONING CHANGE. AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY 
OWNER, THE CITY OF BELTON INVITES YOU TO MAKE YOUR VIEWS KNOWN REGARDING THIS ZONING CHANGE.  YOU MAY 
SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS BY COMPLETING THIS FORM AND RETURNING IT TO P.O. BOX 120, BELTON, TX  76513 OR 
VIA EMAIL TO PLANNING@BELTONTEXAS.GOV, PRIOR TO 1:00 P.M. ON FEBRUARY 20, 2024. 

 
IF YOU REQUIRE INTERPRETER SERVICES FOR THE DEAF OR HEARING IMPAIRED, PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 

CLERK AT CITY HALL AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THESE MEETINGS. 
 

  
circle one 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, I (PROTEST) (APPROVE) THE REQUESTED ZONING AMENDMENT PRESENTED IN THE 
APPLICATION ABOVE FOR THE REASONS EXPRESSED BELOW: 
 
1.   
 
 
2.   
 
 
3.   
  

(ADDITIONAL COMMENTS MAY BE ADDED ON A SEPARATE SHEET OF PAPER) 
 
 
SIGNATURE OF THE PROPERTY OWNER: _______________________________   DATE: _____________________ 

 
     
                                                                                                    PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
                                                        CITY OF BELTON 
                                                        P. O. BOX 120 
                                                        BELTON, TEXAS  76513  
                                                        254.933.5291 

mailto:Planning@beltontexas.gov


§̈¦35 §̈¦35

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

EX
IT 

29
0

ON

ON
 R

AM
P

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

MESQUITE RD

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

MESQUITE LN

ME
SQ

UIT
E R

D

76926

73
34

3

2 4 33 4

73344

24 336

421080

4 2 1 0 7 8

19656

98485
98483

Legend
Z_24_04
200' Property Owner
Notification Area
Tax Appraisal Parcels

Zoning Case #   Zoning Case #    Z-24-04 Z-24-04

0 500250
Feet µMap Date: 1/26/2024

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning Cases\2024\!Zoning Change Cases!\Z-24-04\Z-24-04.mxd
Author: Anthony Notgrass, City of Belton

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for
or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. They do not represent
an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property 
boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.

ZONING CHANGE:
AG

A0006BC M F CONNELL,
(PT OF 7.51AC TR), ACRES 3.964
A0006BC M F CONNELL,
(PT OF 7.51AC TR), ACRES 3.546

to
PD - CH
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
UNITY FOUR 2150 INVESTMENTS, LLC

3401 S IH 35 SVC RD
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



19656 

CHERIVTCH, MARIE ELAINE 

371 MESQUITE RD 

BELTON, TX 76513-4635 
 

 
24334, 24336 

O'DONNELL, KIRK A & DEBORAH K 

578 LAKEVIEW HBR 

ONALASKA, TX 77360-7434 
 

 
421080, 421078 

LGR DEVELOPMENT LLC 

921 E 6TH AVE 

BELTON, TX 76513-2711 

 
73343, 73344 

PETTY-EMRICK, LISA 

267 MESQUITE RD 

BELTON, TX 76513-4634 
 

 
98483, 98485 

UNITY FOUR 2150 INVESTMENT LLC 

12195 METRIC BLVD 

AUSTIN, TX 78758 

 

 
76926 

SCOTT, BYRON K 

488 MESQUITE RD 

BELTON, TX 76513-4616 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

P&Z Agenda Item 
February 20, 2024 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – Planning & Zoning Agenda Item 
 
 
 
       

Date:  February 20, 2024 
Case No.: P-22-45 Unity Four Plat 

      Request: Final Plat 
      Applicant: 2P Consultants 

Owner:  Unity Four Investment, Inc 
 
Agenda Item #5 
     
P-22-45 - Consider a final plat of Unity Four Plat, comprising 7.51 acres, located at the 
southwest intersection of Interstate 35 Frontage Road and Mesquite Drive.    
 
Case Summary: 
 
This is a final plat. It consists of one lot and one block on 7.51 acres.  The property is currently 
undeveloped. The proposed development is a convenient store, restaurant, and truck stop.  
 
Project Analysis and Discussion  
 

• Zoning: This lot is currently Agricultural and is currently under consideration for a 
Planned Development (PD) – Commercial Highway (CH) zoning. The lot size exceeds 
the minimum area requirements for the Commercial Highway zoning District and 
proposed buildings meet the required setbacks. The proposed zoning is a Planned 
Development because it includes a Development Agreement addressing perimeter 
roads, sidewalks, wastewater, and drainage.  

 
• Water:  Belton CCN. A 14” water line is available and is adequate for water service and 

fire protection.  
 

• Sewer:  Belton CCN. Wastewater services is currently not available at this location.  The 
applicant plans to install an on-site-sewage facility which will require approval from the 
Bell County Public Health Department. The developer has agreed to dedicate a 
wastewater easement and connect, at their expense, to the wastewater system when 
available.  

 
• Streets and Sidewalks:  Mesquite Road is a minor collector on the City’s Thoroughfare 

Plan Map and requires 60’ of right of way (ROW).   A previous dedication provided 13’ 
of ROW along the frontage of this property on Mesquite Road to the existing 47’ ROW. 
No additional ROW is required with this plat.  Perimeter Street Improvements (PSI) are 

 



 
 
 

P&Z Agenda Item 
February 20, 2024 

Page 2 of 2   
 

required for Mesquite Road.  The developer has agreed to construct the required 36’ of 
pavement, curb, gutter, and 5’ sidewalk.  
 

• Interstate 35 is a TxDOT facility. The developer is required to construct a 6’ wide 
sidewalk is required along the frontage road.   
 

• Drainage: The developer will construct the city-designed public drainage improvements 
on Mesquite Road.   
 

 
Conclusion:  The plat and civil construction plans for the proposed travel center are under 
review and have outstanding comments to be addressed as listed in the City’s letter of 
conditions, dated December 15, 2022.   

Recommendation 

Recommend approval of the final plat of Unity Four Plat, subject to the following: 
 

1. Approval of the Zoning Change from Agricultural to Planned Development – Commercial 
Highway.  

2. Conditions in the city letter dated December 15, 2022. 
3. Conditions included in the Development Agreement. 

 
Attachments 

1. Final Plat Application 
2. Final Plat 
3. Location Map 
4. City letter of conditions dated December 15, 2022 
5. Development Agreement from the PD-CH Zoning Case 







E

T
AT

S I NO A L
P

R
L

ES
O

F ECI SN

S

ET
OF

XA

NE

R
ED

GI N
E

S
E

DAVID URBAN
82783

11/29/2022

11/29/2022



           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

       
 

 
 
December 14, 2022 
 
Project: UNITY FOUR PLAT 
Applicant: 2P CONSULTANTS, LLC. /UNITY FOUR INVESTMENT. LLC.  
Date Submitted:   
 1st Review – 12-5-23 
Location: 3501 S. Mesquite Road   ACRES LOCATION: 7.51 Acres 

 
***Please comment back in red under the comments submitted on this sheet.*** 

 
PLANNING: 

1. Field notes are not required on the plat.  Please provide as a separate 8”x11” document.  Plat 
can be consolidated into one 24”x36” size copy for recording.  

2. Plat Corrections: 
a. Sheet 1 of 2 - Remove submittal dates from plat – this is incorrect and not necessary.  
b. Sheet 2 of 2 Note #3 - Water System servicing this subdivision shall be designed and installed 

in accordance to the City of Belton specifications.  
c. Sheet 2 of 2 Note #3b - Wastewater system serving this subdivision shall be designed and 

installed in accordance to the Bell County Public Health Department specifications.  
d. Sheet 2 of 2 Note #6 - Site development construction plans shall be reviewed by the City of 

Belton prior to construction.  
e. Sheet 2 of 2 Note #7 - All subdivision construction, including streets, drainage, water, etc. 

Shall conform to the City of Belton Subdivision Ordinance and Construction Standards.  
f. Sheet 2 of 2 - The word “state” is misspelled on the owner’s notary block.  

3. Signature Blocks - Sheet 2 of 2 - Please remove the County Judge signature block, this is within 
the incorporated limits of Belton. Replace with:  

 
 I hereby certify that the above and forgoing Plat of the Unity Four Addition to the City of Belton 
was approved this ____ day of _____. 2023, by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
____________________________________________________ 
Chairman                                                     Secretary 
 
I hereby certify that the above and forgoing Plat of the Unity Four Addition to the City of Belton 
was approved this ____ day of _____. 2023, by the City Council of the City of Belton, Texas.  
_______________________________________________________ 
Mayor                                                             Secretary 
 
Said addition shall be subject to all the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance of Belton. 
Witness by hand this ____ day of ___________, 2023.  
 

_______________________ 

City of Belton 

 

 

  Planning Department 



           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

City Clerk  
 
Filed for recording this ____ day of _______________ 2023, in document no. 
_____________________________, official public records of real property, Bell County, Texas.  
 
______________________________________ 
County Clerk 

4. A zoning change application has been submitted to change the zoning from Agricultural to 
Planned Development - Commercial Highway for this property.  This item is to be considered at 
a future Public Hearing for the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.  The 
Commercial Highway zoning district requires a front yard setback of 60’ and side yard setback of 
20’, please correct distance on proposed plat, if zoning is approved.  

5. The line work for the building setbacks and access easement is confusing.  We recommend 
removing the building setback line and adding a plat note indicating “Building setback lines shall 
be in accordance with the City of Belton Zoning Ordinance.”  This should eliminate the confusion 
between the setback lines and the access easement.  

6. Mesquite Road is classified as a Minor Collector Road on the City’s Thoroughfare Plan Map.  
Minor Collectors requires 60’ of ROW. Please clarify the right of way width on Mesquite Road. 
Attached is a previously recorded dedication (Document #00020616) for a 13.66’ dedication 
along Mesquite Road. This previous dedication should be shown on the plat with the document 
number. Was this area included as part of the existing ROW? 

7. Perimeter Street Improvements (PSI) are needed on Mesquite Road per section 502.1.H, 
Roadway participation Standards – Improvement of Unimproved or Substandard Streets 
abutting the subdivision and development lot.   

a. Due to the required PSI, this plat does not qualify for an administrative review and 
requires approval from the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. 

8. The City recommends providing a cross access easement (minimum 24’) to the adjacent 
southern property due to access limitation on the IH35 Frontage Road. 

9. Please provide Bell County Public Health Department review letter for on-site sewage facility 
proposal. 

10. Please add dimensions of the P.U.E on plat - 14’ wide easement.  
11. Please find attached Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District (Clearwater) review 

memo for this plat.  Please contact Clearwater for requirements to plug the two existing wells 
on site. Please provide a signature block for Clearwater as instructed by the memo.   

PUBLIC WORKS/KPA:  
1. Please label the ROW of Mesquite and I-35 at the corner points of the property. 
2. The CLOMR changes the shape of the floodplain and defines the proposed drainage easement.  

The drainage improvements will need to be reviewed with the site development plan.   
3. All comments from TxDOT and Clearwater UWCD need to be addressed prior to 

recommendation of plat approval. 
4. On the Existing Conditions Exhibit, there are two boundaries shown for the floodplain:  1% 

FEMA and 100-yr.  Is the 100-yr boundary a modeled floodplain or is it really the floodway?  
Please clarify.  In addition, the FEMA 1% linework does not match up to the FEMA floodplain 
boundary shown on the plat.  Please verify that the correct floodplain boundary is shown on the 
plat. 

5. Note 1 on Page Two of the plat needs to be completed regarding the utility service providers for 
this property. 



           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

6. Add a note to the plat stating that the City of Belton does not regulate lot-to-lot drainage. 
 

BUILDING OFFICIAL: 
 No Comments. 
FIRE DEPT: 
 No Comments.  
POLICE DEPT: 
 No Comments. 
GIS: 

1. Field notes missing radius of one curve. Bearings and distances in the field notes should match 
the plat. 

 
 
Outside Utility Provider Comments 

Oncor:  
AT&T:   
Atmos Energy:  
Charter Communications:  
Grande Communications:  
Spectrum (Time Warner):  
USPS:  
Clearwater UCD: No signature needed. 
TXDOT: No comments.  

  
Note: Acceptance by the City of Belton of a plat, zoning change, conceptual drawing, construction 
drawing, or other development submittal complying with City of Belton minimum standards for 
drainage does not provide approval beyond what the City may authorize.  Approval is limited, and 
this approval does not limit any obligations you may have under applicable state statutes, such as the 
Texas Water Code, or federal statutes.  You should consult with your own professionals as you 
continue to pursue this development project. 



1 | P a g e  
 

Belton Travel Center Development Agreement 
 
 
 
 
PART 1 
Findings and Agreement 
 
The City of Belton (City) finds that entering into this Development Agreement with 
Unity Four 2150 Investment, LLC (Developer) is in the public’s interest to improve 
Mesquite Lane and provide for future wastewater line placement. 
 
Developer applied for a zoning change, Final Plat, and Site Plan on a 7.51-acre 
commercial development at 3405 S IH 35 SCV Rd, known as Belton Travel Center 
(Attachment “A”). 
 
PART 2 
Planned Road Improvements 
 
According to the City’s Thoroughfare Plan Map, Mesquite is a Minor Collector ‘B’ with 
60’ ROW and 36 feet pavement (see Attachment “B”). 
 
The Developer agrees to construct the full pavement section of Mesquite Road that 
abuts the subdivision, as described herein and shown on Attachment “C,” a total 
distance of 511 feet. The developer will install a 5-foot sidewalk on the subdivision 
side of the roadway. These improvements will be placed within the existing road ROW 
and the Developer will dedicate up to 13.03 feet of ROW from the subject property.  
 
PART 3 
Planned Drainage Improvements 
 
As part of the “Planned Road Improvements” identified in Part 2 of this Agreement, 
the developer will construct drainage improvements to expand the existing 
stormwater drainage pipe to accommodate the existing drainage feature that crosses 
this section of Mesquite Road. The purpose of these improvements is to eliminate the 
flooding that current exists at the intersection of IH-35 and Mesquite Road. 
 
 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

Design and Engineering 
 
The Developer will pay for the design cost of the Mesquite Road and the stormwater 
improvements described herein and the city of Belton will allow the Developer to use 
any existing design plans that have already been completed, and make any necessary 
design changes that might be required. 
 
PART 4 
Wastewater Service 
 
The Developer agrees to dedicate an easement and contribute to the cost for the 
installation of a public wastewater line at such time as others wish to extend the city’s 
existing wastewater system. This cost will be limited to the section of the wastewater 
line that crosses the Developer’s property. Once the wastewater line is complete and 
operational, the Developer agrees to abandon the proposed septic system and 
connect to this wastewater line. (see Attachment “D”). 
 
PART 5 
Fencing and Landscape Buffer 
 
The Developer will construct and install an 8-foot landscaped buffer and a 6-foot wood 
privacy fence along the property’s western boundary as shown on Attachment “E”. 
The landscaping shall consist of Red Tip Photinia planted on 8-foot center and located 
on the inside of the fence. 
 
PART 6 
Building Design Elevations 
 
The Developer will construct the building in substantial compliance with the 
architectural elevations shown on Attachment “F”. 
  
PART 7 
School Safety Improvements 
 
The Developer will install a sidewalk along the subdivision side of Mesquite Road and 
the IH-35 frontage road, along with an on-site school bus stop facility that will be 
placed within the boundaries of the proposed development. The location and specific 
improvements will be determined with the Site Plan application. 



3 | P a g e  
 

Approvals 
 
The City and Developer both agree to these terms and conditions. 
Nothing in this agreement removes, amends, changes, or alters any of the existing 
development ordinances, policies, or regulations unless specifically addressed by this 
Agreement. 
 
Any amendments to this agreement must be made in writing, approved by both 
parties in writing, whereby the amendment is initiated a minimum of 30 working days 
in advance. 
 
Signatures 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Unity Four 2150 Investment, LLC  
By: Nasruddin Mahesania, its manager 
 
Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sam A. Listi, City Manager  
 
 
Date: ________________________ 
 
 
 

Attachments 
Attachment “A” — Unity Four Final Plat. 
Attachment “B” — Page from the Belton Engineering Design Manual showing the 
Minor Collector Cross Section A. 
Attachment “C” – Roadway Improvements to Mesquite Road. 
Attachment “D” – Future Wastewater Line Location. 
Attachment “E” - Fencing and Landscape Buffer Location. 
Attachment “F” - Building Elevations. 
 
 

2/14/2024















 
There were no 

Administrative Plats 
approved during the 

month of January 2024. 


	PZ Agenda 2-20-24
	P&Z Minutes - 01-16-24 
	SR - Z-24-04 - 3405 S. IH 35
	Zoning Change Application -3401 S. IH 35
	development agg signed.
	Z-24-04_Location
	Z-24-04_Zoning
	Z-24-04_Aerial
	PON -Z-24-04 - 3401 S. IH 35
	Z-24-04
	Z-24-04_mailing_list.xls - Condensed
	SR - P-22-45 - Unity Four
	New Plat App 14-Nov-2022 11-55-23
	A0102321 - UNITY FOUR PLAT
	Staff Comment 12-14-2022
	development agg signed.
	No Plats

	Date received: 
	APPLICANT NAME: Richard Mathias
	EMAIL: richard@mathiascompany.com
	PHONE NUMBER: 512-844-1644
	MAILING ADDRESS: 27001 Montana Creek Crossing Marble Falls, TX 78654
	PROPERTY OWNER NAME: Unity Four 2150 Investment LLC
	EMAIL_2: nasru786110@sbcglobal.net
	PHONE NUMBER_2: 512-203-5049
	MAILING ADDRESS_2: 11940 Jollyville Rd. #110-N, Austin, TX 78759
	Proposed Use of Structures building and Property exterior property 1: Convenience Store, Restaurant, and gas station
	Proposed Use of Structures building and Property exterior property 2: 
	Current Use 1: Vacant
	Current Use 2: 
	LOCATIONSTREET ADDRESS OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED: 
	undefined: 3405 S IH 35 SVC Rd
	Legal Description of Property Abstract Survey: 7.51 acres out of the M F Connell Survey, Abstract No. 6
	Lots: 
	Blocks: 
	of Subdivision: 
	Existing Zoning: A Agricultural
	Proposed Zoning: PUD
	Date: 4/26/2023
	Date_2: 5/10/2023


